Andes Technology Corporation

Handbook for the 2021 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders

(Summary Translation)

Meeting Date: May 25™, 2021

Code: 6533



Table of Contents

Procedure for the 2021 Annual Meeting of Shareholders............ceeeeeueeecscnerccsnnnnnn. 1
Agenda of Year 2021 Annual Meeting of Shareholders ...........cceeevveeecsueiccneecseecsnnnen. 2
I. REPOIL IEEIMS ccuuveriierisneriicssssnniecssssnneecsssssnsesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnans 3
I1. ACKNOWIEAZEMENLS...cueeiiirrsrreriecsssssareecsssssansecssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssans 4
I11. | D (Tl 1 11 1 TN 5
IV. Proposed ReSOIUTIONS .....uueerieiescranreccssssnnrecsssssansessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassass 6
V. EXtemporary MOtIONS . .....eeeeeieeicssnrecssnnecssnnessssseesssssncssssesssssssssssssssssnsens 13
AtACRIMENL c..uuaeieeneiiiiniiiinntiniinttininteenineecssnttecsssstecsssneesssssessssssssssssessssssasssssssssssssnsssnns 14
Attachment 1 2020 DUSINESS FEPOTTt....cciierecrrreecsscsnreccssssssrnccssssssscsssssssssssssssassesses 15
Attachment 2 Audit Committee’s Review Report ..........ceeccevvcnneiccsscsnnrnecsscsnnneccne 17
Attachment 3 Independent Auditors’ Report and Consolidated Financial
STALCIMENLS c..cuuueeeiiineeiiineecsineecssneecssneesssssessssssesssssescssssasssssssssssssasess 18
Attachment 4 Independent Auditors’ Report and Unconsolidated Financial
STALCIMENLS c..cuuueeiiineeiiineecsinencssneecssnneessssseesssssecssssnssssssasssssssssssssnsens 29
Attachment 5 List of Director Candidates (including Independent Director
Candidates) .....ccccereinnsnsrnnnnereicccssssssssssnssssesscssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnss 40
Attachment 6 The position and company name list of the candidate for the
Directors (including Independent Directors) ........ccceeeecnneeccsscnnnes 42
Attachment 7 Regulation Governing the Issuance of Restricted Shares for
Employee in 2021 .....eeiiiiiicnnniccscssnsneccsssnssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssecs 43
APPENAIX ceeiierirrrnriecssssnneesssssssseessssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 47
Appendix 1 Andes Articles of INCOrporation..........ccccccveeeccssssnnseccsssssnnecssssssssecssses 48
Appendix 2 Andes Rules and Procedures of Shareholders’ Meeting............cc..... 54
Appendix 3 Rules for Election of Directors.......ccueiicccsssneeccssssanneccssssanseccsssnssesssses 63

Appendix 4 Shareholdings of All DIreCtors .......c.ccieeeceicccsnricscsnrecsssnccssnsncssssessnns 65



Andes Technology Corporation
Procedure for the 2021 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

I. Call the Meeting to Order
II. Chairman Remarks

III.  Report Items

IV.  Acknowledgements

V. Elections

VI.  Proposed Resolutions
VII. Extemporary Motions

VIII. Meeting Adjourned



Andes Technology Corporation
Agenda of Year 2021 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Time: 10:00 a.m., May 25%, 2021 (Tuesday)
Venue: Meeting Room Darwin, 2F, No.1, Gongye E. 2" Rd., Hsinchu Science Park,
Hsinchu, Taiwan

Agenda:

L. Call the Meeting to Order
II.  Chairman Remarks
III.  Report items
(1) 2020 business report
(2) Audit Committee’s review report on the 2020 financial statements
(3) Report on 2020 employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors
(4) Report on the 2020 cash dividend distribution
IV.  Acknowledgements
(1) Adoption of the 2020 business report and financial statements
(2) Adoption of the proposal for distribution of 2020 profits

V.  Elections
(1) Election of seven directors (including three independent directors) of the
7" session

VI. Proposed Resolutions
(1) Proposal for releasing the non-compete restriction on the Company’s 7%
newly elected Directors
(2) Proposal for issuing common shares or/and issuing common shares for
sponsor of the issuance of Global Depositary Receipts (GDR)
(3) Proposal for the issuance of Restricted Stock Awards (RSA)
VII. Extemporary Motions
VIII. Meeting Adjourned



I. Report Items

Report item (1)

Proposed by the Board of Directors

Subject: 2020 business report.

Descriptions: For 2020 business report is attached on P.15~P.16, Attachment 1.

Report item (2)
Proposed by the Board of Directors
Subject: Audit Committee’s review report on the 2020 financial statements.

Descriptions: 2020 Audit Committee’s review report is attached on P.17, Attachment
2.

Report item (3)
Proposed by the Board of Directors
Subject: Report on 2020 employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors.
Descriptions:
(1) According to Article 23 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation, if there
1s any profit for a specific fiscal year, the Company shall allocate no less
than 2% of the profit as employees’ compensation and shall allocate at a
maximum of 1% of the profit as remuneration to directors, provided that the
Company’s accumulated losses shall have been covered in advance.
(2) The Board has adopted a proposal for distribution of 2020 profit as follows:
employees’ compensation is NT$2,439,000 and the remuneration to directors
is NT$406,000; both shall be paid in cash.

Report item (4)

Proposed by the Board of Directors

Subject: Report on the 2020 cash dividend distribution.

Descriptions: Net income of 2020 was NT$35,141,808. According to Article 23-1 of
the Company's Articles of Incorporation, setting aside 10% legal serves
NT$3,514,181, the proposed Cash dividend to shareholders was NT$31,627,627. The
Chairman of the Board is authorized to make the Ex-dividend base date and the
dividend payment date.



II. Acknowledgements

Acknowledgement (1)

Proposed by the Board of Directors

Subject: Adoption of the 2020 business report and financial statements.

Descriptions:

(1) The Company’s 2020 Business Report and financial statements has been approved
by the 13" Meeting of the 6 Board of Directors and reviewed by Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee’s review report was issued accordingly.

(2)ANDES’ 2020 financial statements were audited by independent auditors
Shao-Pin Kuo and Jia-Lin Tu of Ernst & Young.

(3)For the 2020 business report is attached on P.15~P.16, Attachment 1. For the
aforementioned financial statements, please refer to P.18-P.39, Attachment 3 and
Attachment 4.

Resolution:

Acknowledgement (2)

Proposed by the Board of Directors

Subject: Adoption of the proposal for distribution of 2020 profits.

Descriptions:

(1) The proposal for distribution of 2020 profits has been approved by the 13t
Meeting of the 6™ Board of Directors and reviewed by Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee’s review report was issued accordingly.

(2) Please refer to the 2020 profit distribution table below:

Descriptions Amount (NTD)
Unappropriated retained earnings of previous years $ 0
Plus: Net income of 2020 35,141,808
Earnings available for distribution 35,141,808
Less: setting aside 10% legal serves (3,514,181)
Add: setting reversal * special reserves of prior years 0
Less: setting aside special reserves 0
Distributable net profit 31,627,627
Shareholders' dividends — Cash (NT$ 0.741546 per share) (31,627,627)
Unappropriated retained earnings $ 0

1. The cash dividends will be distributed to each shareholder based on shareholding percentages, and be
rounded down to the nearest dollar. The amounts under one dollar due to the rounding off are summed and
recognized as the Company’s other income. The Chairman of the Board is authorized to make the
Ex-dividend base date and the dividend payment date.

2. Cash dividend distributions are calculated based on Andes’ outstanding shares of 42,650,911 shares as of
March 2™, 2021.

3. In the event of any change in the number of outstanding shares resulting from the repurchase of the
Company common stock, transfer, conversation or cancellation of the treasury stock, the dividend ratio
must be adjusted. The Chairman of the Board is authorized to make any adjustment of the dividend ratio
and to proceed on the relevant matters.

Chairman: Ming-Kai Tsai President: Jyh-Ming Lin CFO: Han-Chang Cho

Resolution:



I11. Election

Election (1)
Proposed by the Board of Directors

Subject: Election of seven directors (including three independent directors) of the 7%
session.

Descriptions:

(1)According to Article 16 of the Company's “Articles of Incorporation”, the
Company sets up 5 to 9 director seats, and the board is authorized to decide the
number of directors.

(2) The tenure of Directors of the 6™ session will be due on June 20%, 2021. The
Company plans to elect the Directors of the 7™ session for 7 seats of Directors
(including 3 seats of Independent Directors) at the 2021 annual shareholders’
meeting. The tenure of Directors of the 6™ session will be due on the end of the
annual shareholders’ meeting. The new tenure of Directors will start at the end of
the election from May 25%, 2021 to May 24", 2024, for a period of three years.

(3)For the list of Director Candidates (including Independent Directors Candidates),
please refer to P.40-P.41, Attachment 5.

(4) Election is respectfully requested.

Election Results:



IV. Proposed Resolutions

Proposal (1)
Proposed by the Board of Directors

Subject: Proposal for releasing the non-compete restriction on the Company’s 7th
newly elected Directors.

Descriptions:

(1)Pursuant to Article 209 of the Company Act, "a director who engages in any
behavior for himself/herself or on behalf of another person that is within the scope
of the company's business shall explain the essential contents of such an act to the
shareholders’ meeting and obtain its approval."

(2)Since there are directors of the Company holding concurrent positions at other
companies whose business scope is the same or similar to that of the Company,
we hereby request the meeting of shareholders to approve the removal of the
non-competition restriction imposed on the directors of the Company in
accordance with the above mentioned Article 209 of the Company Act.

(3)For the position and company name list of the candidate for the Directors
(including Independent Directors), please refer to P.42, Attachment 6.

Resolution:

Proposal (2)
Proposed by the Board of Directors

Subject: Proposal for issuing common shares or/and issuing common shares for
sponsor of the issuance of Global Depositary Receipts (GDR).

Descriptions:

The Company intends to invest subsidiary, invest in software, equipment and related
technologies of high-end technology products, enrich working capital, improve
financial structure, and/or support other funding needs for one or more purposes such
as the company's long-term development, and make the fund-raising channels more
diversified and flexible. It is proposed to request the shareholders’ meeting to
authorize the Board of Directors to issue common shares by cash capital increase in
stages or at the same time in accordance with the company’s articles of incorporation,
relevant laws and regulations at an appropriate time, or at the same time. Participating
in the issuance of Global Depositary Receipts (GDR) or domestic cash capital
increase issuance of common shares, the method and content are explained as
follows:

1. The principle of raising capital through issuing common shares for sponsor of the
issuance of GDR:

(1) This cash appreciation capital issuance of common shares to participate in the
issuance of GDR, the number of shares to be issued shall not exceed 10
million shares, and the Board of Directors shall be authorized by the
shareholders meeting to adjust the issuance quota within this quota according
to market conditions issued.



(2) The issuing price of this “raising capital through issuing common shares for
sponsor of the issuance of GDR” shall be based on the Self Regulation of
Taiwan Securities Association for Underwriter Members Advising Public
Companies of Offering and Issuing Securities (the Underwriter Self
Regulation). The issuing price shall not be lower than (a) the closing price of
the Company’s common share at Taiwan Stock Exchange on the price fixing
date or (b) 90 % of the average stock price (the basic price) after
ex-rights/ex-dividend (or ex-rights of capital reduction) of issuance of bonus
shares deducted from simple arithmetic mean of the closing price of the
common shares selected from whichever of the prior 1, 3, or 5 business day.
Should the domestic law amends, the price setting can be adjusted in
compliance with the law; Considering drastic short term fluctuation of
domestic stock price, in order to attract foreign investors and obtain their
supports, within the above authorization scope, the authorized Chairman of
BOD or persons designated by the Chairman of BOD will, notifying the
securities firms, decide the actual issuing price based on international customs,
taking international capital market, domestic price and book building
conditions into consideration as well. Therefore, the issue price setting
method should be reasonable. Regarding the issuing price of GDR, the price
shall be based on the fair market price of the common share in domestic
securities exchange market. The original shareholders may still purchase
common shares in domestic market with a price close to the issuing price of
GDR, without taking the risk of currency exchange and circulation. Thus, the
maximum amount of the capital increase in cash to participate in the issuance
of GDR to the original shareholder’s equity dilution ratio is 18.99%. There
should be no material impact to the original shareholders.

(3) According to article 267 of the Company Act, this proposal of "raising capital
through issuing common shares for GDR" will reserve 10% to 15% of new
shares for subscription by the Company’s employees. According to article
28-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the rest of the shares shall be
publicly offered as the underlying securities to sponsor the issuance of GDR.
If the employee subscription is insufficient or waived, the Company proposes
to authorize the Chairman of the BOD or persons designated by the Chairman
of BOD to individually or jointly contact specific persons for subscription
based on the issuing price, or, depending on the demands of the market, to list
it as original securities for issuing GDR.

(4) This cash appreciation fund issuance of common shares to participate in the
issuance of GDR, the funds raised are expected to be used for reinvestment,
investment in software, equipment and related technologies of high-end
technology products, enrich working capital, improve financial structure and/
Or support for one or more purposes such as the company’s long-term
development needs, and it is expected to complete the use of funds within two
years after the completion of the fundraising. The execution estimate of this
plan can strengthen the company’s competitiveness and improve operating
efficiency. The benefits are positively beneficial to shareholders’ equity.

(5) The important content of this cash increase of common shares to participate in
the issuance of GDR plan, including such matters as issuance conditions,
issuance methods, funding sources, planned items, scheduled progress and

7



expected possible benefits, and all other related issuance operations , To
authorize the Board of Directors to adjust, determine and handle the situation
according to market conditions. In the future, if changes are required due to
the approval of the competent authority or based on operational evaluation or
due to the objective environment, the Board of Directors is also requested to
authorize the Board of Directors to deal with it.

(6)In order to cooperate with the issuance of common shares by cash capital
increase to participate in the issuance of GDR, the Chairman or his designated
person is authorized to approve and sign all documents related to participation
in the issuance of GDR and handle related matters on behalf of the Company.

2. Principles for domestic cash capital increase and issuance of common shares:

(1)This domestic cash capital increase issuance of ordinary shares, and the
number of shares to be issued shall not exceed 10 million shares.

(2) The cash capital increase is NT$10 per share, and the actual issue price will
be in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Self Regulation of
Taiwan Securities Association for Underwriter Members Advising Public
Companies of Offering and Issuing Securities (the Underwriter Self
Regulation) and authorize Chairman depending on the market conditions at
the time of issuance The manager and the underwriter jointly negotiate, and
submit it to the competent authority for review and issuance.

(3)In accordance with Article 28-1 of the Securities Exchange Act, the
underwriting method of the external public offering will be authorized to the
Board of Directors to adopt either public subscription or enquiry circle
purchase:

A. If the public subscription and allotment method is adopted:
In addition to retaining 10% to 15% of the issued shares in accordance with
Article 267 of the Company Law and prioritized subscription by employees
at the actual issuance price, in addition to the provision of 10% of the total
amount of new shares issued in accordance with Article 28-1 of the
Securities and Exchange Act, it is publicly issued. The remaining 75%~
80% will be pre-subscribed by the original shareholders according to the
shareholding ratio on the base date of subscription. If the subscription is
less than 1 share of odd shares, the shareholders will pool together within
five days from the date of cessation of transfer, and the original
shareholders and employees will give up the subscription shares. Or the
odd shares of less than 1 share are combined, and the chairman is
authorized to contact a specific person to subscribe at the issue price.
B. If you use the enquiry circle purchase method:

Except that 10% to 15% of the issued shares are reserved according to
Article 267 of the Company Law and the employees will preferentially
subscribe at the actual issuance price, the remaining shares shall be subject
to Article 28-1 of the Securities Exchange Law. It is proposed to submit to
the shareholders meeting for approval by the original shareholders that the
pre-emptive rights to subscribe to the remaining shares to be waived by the
shareholders and such remaining shares will be offered to the public via
book building, and all the shares shall be allocated for public issuance by
means of enquiry circle purchase. In addition, if the company’s employees
have insufficient subscription or give up the subscription, the Chairman is

8



authorized to contact a specific person to subscribe at the issue price.

(4) The new shares issued in this capital raise shall bear the same rights and obligations as the
original shares.

(5) The funds raised from the cash capital increase issuance of ordinary shares are
expected to be used for reinvestment, investment in software, equipment and
related technologies of high-end technology products, enriching working
capital, improving financial structure and/or supporting other capital needs in
response to the company's long-term development Wait for one or more
purposes, and is expected to complete the use of funds within two years after
the completion of the fundraising. The implementation of this plan is expected
to strengthen the company’s competitiveness, enhance the effectiveness of
operating efficiency, and have a positive benefit to shareholders’ equity.

(6) The important contents of the cash capital increase plan, including such
matters as issuance conditions, funding sources, planned items, scheduled
progress and expected benefits, etc., and all other related issuance operations,
authorize the Board of Directors to adjust, determine and determine according
to market conditions In the future. If changes are required due to approval by
the competent authority or based on operational evaluation or due to the
objective environment, the shareholders' meeting shall also authorize the
Board of Directors to handle the matter.

(7)After the cash capital increase proposal is submitted to the competent
authority to declare and become effective, the Chairman is authorized to set
the subscription base date, payment period and capital increase base date and
other matters related to the issuance of new shares.

3. If there are any outstanding matters, it i1s proposed to request the shareholders
meeting to authorize the Board of Directors to deal with it in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations.

Resolution:

Proposal (3)

Proposed by the Board of Directors

Subject: Proposal for the issuance of Restricted Stock Awards (RSA).
Descriptions:

1. Plan to follow the related provisions in Paragraph 9 of Article 267 of the
Company Act and the “Regulations Governing the offering and issuance of
Securities by Securities Issuers” promulgated by Financial Supervisory
Commission, Executive Yuan in issuing Restricted Stock for employees in the
year 2021.

2. Issuing Restricted Stock for employees related matters are described as follows:
(1) Total amount of new issuance: The maximum total amount of newly issued

Restricted Stock i1s 60,000 common stocks. Each stock is at par value of
NT$10. Amounted to NT$ 600,000 in total. Stocks will be issued at once or
number of times from the date of resolution of shareholders’ meeting.



(2) Conditions of issuing stocks:

I. Price of stock issued: each share is issued at NT$0, that is, no cash value price
is attached to the distribution of shares to the employees.

II. Vesting conditions:

A. The distribution of new restricted employee shares of this time shall be
made pursuant to the following vesting conditions:

For those employees who are awarded the new restricted shares for
employee being still at service after the expiration for the company or a
subsidiary company of the following terms and achieving the performance
criteria set by the Company (performance requirement is set by the Board
of Directors), the proportion of shares reaching the vesting conditions is as
follows.

Serving the expiration of one year: 33%
Serving the expiration of two year: 33%
Serving the expiration of three year: 34%

B. The company’s operating objectives are based on revenue (Revenue) or
earnings per share (EPS) as performance indicators. Achieving any
performance indicator is deemed to have achieved the company’s operating
objectives; the determination of achieving the operating objectives is based
on the annual consolidated financials verified by an accountant. The report
forms the basis of calculation.

After the expiration of one year, revenue or earnings per share has
grown by more than 10% (inclusive) over the previous year.

After the expiration of two years, revenue or earnings per share has
grown by more than 10% (inclusive) over the previous year.

After the expiration of three years, revenue or earnings per share has
grown by more than 10% (inclusive) over the previous year.

For any employee who does not fulfill the vesting conditions, the Company
will take back the shares without compensation to the employee and cancel
those shares.

[I1. Type of stock issued: the Company’s new common stocks

IV. Details are in Paragraph 4 of Article 5 of the Regulation Draft.

(3) Employee qualifications and number of stocks to be given to an employee
I. Employee qualifications:

The distribution of new shares is limited to the employees of the
Company and domestic and foreign subordinate companies. The
employees given the shares and the number of the shares awarded will
depend on factors such as the years of service, job level, work
performance, overall contribution, special achievements or other needed
to be referenced condition in management. The plan will be set by the

Chairman of the Board and submitted to the Board of Directors for
10



approval; however, for those employees with managerial identity should
obtain the approval from the Remuneration Committee before submitting
to Board of Directors.

II. Number of stocks to be given to an employee:

The cumulative number of shares subscribable through the employee stock
options issued to a single employee in accordance with paragraph 1,
Article 56- 1 of the “Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of
Securities by Securities Issuers” plus the cumulative number of restricted
new shares received by the same employee shall not exceed 0.3% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares; and the above in combination
with the cumulative number of shares subscribable through employee
stock options issued in accordance with paragraph 1, Article 56 of the
“Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by
Securities Issuers” shall not exceed 1% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares. However, with special approval from the central competent
authority of the relevant industry, the application of the above-mentioned
restriction of the ratio may be exempted. With respect to the recognition
and calculation of the numbers of the abovementioned shares shall be
handled pursuant to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance
of Securities by Securities Issuers and related provisions.

(4) Indispensable reason for conducting this new issuance of restricted stock for
employee:

To attract and retain the technology and professional talent needed by the
Company, and motivate employees to stay longer with the Company, enhance
the sense of belonging and productivity, in a hope to work together in creating
benefits for the Company and its shareholders.

(5) The amount that may be counted as expense, situation of dilution on earnings
per share and other matters that might impact shareholders’ equity:

L.

II.

The Amount that may be counted as expense:

The Company shall measure the fair value of the stock on the granting date,
and recognize the related expenses throughout the period with yearly
installment. The upper limit for the issuance of new restricted shares for
employees in 2021 that planned to be proposed in the shareholders’
meeting is 60,000 shares and each share will be issued at O NT dollars, the
total estimated expense is approximately NT$28,440,000 (estimated using
the closing price of NT$474 on Feb. 22", 2021). According the
predetermined issuance date at the beginning of July 1%, 2021, the
estimated expenses from 2021 to 2024 are NT$4,693,000, NT$9,385,000,
NT$9,527,000 and NT$4,835,000 dollars respectively.

Situation of dilution on earnings per share and other matters that might
impact shareholders’ equity:

Provisional estimate based on the number of 42,650,911 shares, the
Company’s record date. The reduction to earning per share after

expensing the new issuance of restricted shares for employee from 2021
to 2024 are NT$0.11, NT$0.22, NT$0.22 and NT$0.11 respectively.

11



3. After the above contents are approved by the Shareholders’ meeting. The
Company could then conduct the stock issuance in one or several times. For the
Regulation Governing the Issuance of New Restricted Shares for Employees in
2021, please refer to P.43-P.46, Attachment 7.

4. For the matters not stipulated in this new issuance of restricted shares for
employee, if in the future, the component authorities amend or update the contents
of the related terms and conditions, the Company plans to ask the shareholders’
meeting to authorize the Board of Directors with full authority in dealing with
such matter.

Resolution:

12



V. Extemporary Motions

VI. Meeting Adjourned

13



Attachment



Attachment 1 2020 business report

Andes Technology Corporation

Business Report
Dear Shareholders:

In 2020, the world experienced an unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic. The global economy has
shown a very peculiar change, as well as human life and work patterns. Andes cannot stand outside
the impact of COVID-19 either. Fortunately, Taiwan’s response to the virus is outstanding, and
Andes has not been seriously affected. We provided most of our sales, marketing, and technical
services online as well as strictly verified sales colleagues’ business trip plans, making the overall
operation return to prosperity from the rapid decline in the early stage of the pandemic and achieve
sustained growth and profitability.

Business results in 2020

Financial status:

In 2020, Andes Technology's consolidated revenue was NT$581,012 thousands, showing an
increase of 17% from last year, and made a record high. The licensing of CPU IP accounted for
54% of the total revenue, royalty revenues accounted for 27%, CPU IP technical service revenue
(custom computing) accounted for 11%, maintenance service and other income accounted for 8%.
Royalty revenues continued to grow at a high rate.

The consolidated operating income was NT$37,622 thousands, and the net profit for the whole year
was NT$35,142 thousands, and this is the fourth consecutive year that Andes is profitable. Earnings
per share was NT$0.82. The net cash inflows of NT$54,808 thousands for the whole year was

mainly from the growth of operating revenue, and the end cash balance was NT$526,682 thousands.

In terms of budget execution, Andes Technology only set its internal budget targets in 2020, and did
not disclose financial forecasts. However, there is a small gap between revenue growth and
expectations. Profits did not reach our target due to substantial investment in research and
development and the associated cost and expenses.

Sales and marketing status:

In 2020, Andes Technology continued to market RISC-V products, making RISC-V products
account for the majority of our licensed products. In terms of the total proportion, the turnovers of
RISC-V products have exceeded 50% of all turnovers, and we have already received royalties in the
fourth quarter after licensing our RISC-V products. Coupled with the continued high growth of
royalty revenues in recent years, RISC-V products can be said as our second cash cow. According to
statistics, our customers have produced over 2 billion AndeStar V3 SoCs in 2020, and the
accumulative total has exceeded 6 billion. Until the fourth quarter, RISC-V and AndeStar V3
products continued to be licensed for SoC development.

Research development status (IP core and technology):

In 2020, Andes Technology continued to develop RISC-V high-end processor products. In this year,
Andes Technology continued to launch 32-bit and 64-bit multi-core RISC-V high-end
microprocessors and vector computing IP products, such as A27, AX27L2, N45, A45, D45, NX45,
AX45, DX45, and NX27V. We also invested resources to continue to lead the RISC-V International
Association in developing the P-Extension instruction set, Linux operating system, LLVM Compiler,
etc. Being one of the leading manufacturers in the RISC-V camp, Andes has already showed the
strength of its research and development team and has become one of the world's first-class CPU IP
suppliers, laying the foundation for the future development of high-end multi-core products.

15



Business plan summary in 2020

Management policy and future company development strategy:

Andes Technology will continue to develop and provide high-end RISC-V microprocessor IPs and
supporting solutions, as well as participate in managing strategies of the RISC-V board of directors
to expand its competitiveness. At present, the 32-bit and 64-bit multi-core RISC-V A45MP and
AX45MP processors have been released, and are in the final testing stage of research and
development. They are expected to be delivered before the middle of the year. On that basis, Andes
Technology has the ability to provide more complex and efficient computing platforms.
Cooperating with our partners, Andes will help customers enter more HPC, PC, Mobile Phone, Al,
and Cloud application processor (AP) fields.

Impact due to external competitive environment, regulatory environment and overall business
environment:

Since listed on TWSE in 2017, Andes has followed the relevant laws and regulations for listed
companies, continuously promoted corporate governance, and enhanced information transparency.
Andes has also continued to place attention to the changes in the exchange rate of the New Taiwan
dollar against the US dollar, adjust foreign currency assets accordingly to minimize the impact of
exchange rates on financial statements. In 2020, an audit committee was established to implement
corporate governance. Since 2019, the China-US trade war has continued to bring uncertainties to
the global economy. The world also faced the threat of COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. NVIDIA
announced to acquire ARM in the third quarter of 2020. These events had dynamic negative or
positive influences and changes to Andes. The management team of Andes Technology
continuously pays close attention to the development of the situation, adjusts the corresponding
strategy to reduce the risks, and maintain our growth.

Last but not least, we would like to deliver our sincere appreciation to all of our shareholders for
your long-term trust and continuous support for Andes, and wish you all good health and good luck.

Chairman: Ming-Kai Tsai President: Jyh-Ming Lin CFO: Han-Chang Chou

16



Attachment 2 Audit Committee’s Review Report

Andes Technology Corporation
Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company’s 2020 business report, financial statements,
and proposal for allocation of profits. The CPA firm of Ernst & Young was retained to audit Andes’
financial statements and has issued an audit report relating to the financial statements. The business
report, financial statements, and profit allocation proposal have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and no irregularities were found. We hereby report as above according to Article 14-4 of
the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act. Please kindly approve.

To Andes Technology Corporation 2021Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting
Andes Technology Corporation

Chairman of the Audit Committee: Chen-Kuo Yang

March 2™, 2021

17



Attachment 3 Independent Auditors’ Report and Consolidated Financial Statements

18



19



20



21



22



23



noyo Bueyo-ueH : 19010 [eloueul o140 ur BUIN-YAp : juspisald les| ley-Buipy : uewlreyd

‘Sjuswele)s [ejoueul) pajepl|osuod ay; jo ped |eibejul ue aie sejou BulAuedwoooe sy

00001 z16'68¢€°L $ 00004 €06°C0v’l $ S)osse |ejoL
¥0°9C 106'1.9¢ 9¢°0¢ 208'Sey S}OSSE JUaLINd-UoU [e10 |
oro 865G oro 88G'G syusodep s|jgqepunjey
700 LeS €00 (2574 (G9 'y slosse Xe] palaje(d
IR £10'50T 0L0Z Wi 062 @9 v sjesse s|qibuelu|
106 zsl'sel 19 695901 (L9 'y sjesse asn-Jo-1ybiy
8l £€85'6Z z9'l 6122 ©)9 ‘v wswdinbs pue jueld ‘Ausdold

S}JOSSE JUaLINI-UON

96°€/ $00'820°) 7969 L0L'//6 S}osse JuaLNnd [ejo0]

681 L€€'9C 09'L L6v'ce sjuswAedalg
L0 809'l 1AN0) 6661 9 ‘v S8lIoJUBAU|
c00 (0154 100 orl so|qeAlsdal J1ayl0
- = A 296'€T L0199y jou ‘selped peje|al-so|qeAlooal apel |
08 LGE'SLL €€9 €28'88 (oM)g (€9 ‘v jou ‘se|qeAledel epel|
1T°9 LLL'ig 8’6 700'cEl (019 (6l ‘¥ JusLIND 'sjesse JoenuoD
r'eT 00g'sze €8¢l 000081 (@9'v JUB1Ind }S00 pazZ|powe Je painsesw sjesse [eloueuld
Ge'ee vi8'V 1Y $ | veie 789'97S $ N9y sjus|eAinbs yseo pue yseQ

S}O9SSE JuUdalInd
% 610Z '€ Jaquaos( % 0202 ‘L€ Joquiedeg S8I0N S13SSV

(sJejjoq uemie| maN JO SPUBSNOY] Ul SJUNOWY)
6102 PUe 0202 ‘L€ 1aquadaQ Jo sy
S133HS 3ONVIVE d31lvdadlITOSNOD

SARVIAISENS ANV NOLLYHOdHEOD ADOTONHO3L S3IANV
SSoUI]D) Ul PONss| ABUBHQ SIUSWSIEIS [eloUBUl] Poieplosuor) JO UONeSUel] ysipug

24




noyo Bueyo-ueH : 18O [eloueuld JeIyD

ur BulN-uyAp : juspisaid

les| 1ey-Bully : uewlreyd

‘SjusWSlE]S [eIoURUl PalePIoSUo) 8y} Jo Hed [eibejul ue are sejou BulAuedwoooe sy

(8)9
(8)9
(8)9

(L9 'y

(L9 'y

169y

Aynba pue sapijiqel| [ejoL

Aunbe |ej0|
Aunbe Jayi0
sBujuies pauielal [ejo]
sBuluies panguisipun
oAlesal |eloadg
anlesal [ebe
sBuluies pauleloy
snidins jeyden
390}S UoWWOD
lended
juaied ayj Jo siaumo o} ajqejnquye Aunbg

sanjiqel| |e1o]
Sol|Igel| JUS1IN9-uou [ejo |
juslInouoU ‘saljljiqel| asesa
BI| JUa1IN2-UON

salll|iqel| JusLnd [e1o|
Iqel| SjuU8uNd Jayl0
sidisoal 9oueApY
jualno ‘saljljiqel| esesT
sa|qeied Jayi0
so|gefed epel]
JuaLnd ‘seijljigel| 10esuod
Sapljiqel| juaiind

00001 ZI668E | $ | 0000} €06 ¢0v | [3
6v 78 SITYLLL 1268 68€'G6L |
(G1°0) (vz1'2) (10 (S¥9'1)
05} 816°0C 16T £GG Ly
GlL'L £20'91 1ST Trl'ge
800 SOL'} 200 6L0°}
120 06L°€ 620 T6€'S
Sr'TS Tl6'8C. 961G T16'8TL
69°0¢ 60592y or'0g 60692y
LG'GL 1£9'GLT 6.7 71520
68/ 669601 859 L££T6
68/ 669601 8G9 1££T6
29/ 8£6'S01 128 £81°GLL
910 Sve'T 620 T67'G
- €5 ~ or
9zl Gor'LL Tl £80°21
8r'e £Tr'sy 484 69Y'€9
. 6C 200 95¢
Tl €TL'le $ | 90¢ £v8'8T $
% 610T ‘€ Jequiede % 020Z ‘1€ Jequedeq

SOI0N

ALIND3 ANV S3ALLINIgVIT

(sie|jog uemie| MeN JO Spueshoy} Ul sjunowy)
6102 Pue 0202 ‘L€ Joquada(Q Jo sy
$133HS 3IONVIVE A31vdITOSNOD
SARVIAISENS ANV NOILVYIOd¥0D ADOTONHOAL SIANV

3SaUIUD) Ul panss| A[eUbHO) SIUSWSIEIS [eloUeUl] patepljosuoy) Jo UOHeSUel] ysibug

25



26



noyo Bueyg-ueH : 10O [eldueUId JBIYD

ury BUIN-UAr : Juspisaid

1es ] 1ey-Buly : ueuuey)

‘sjuaLuale)s [eloueuly Ajuo Auedwod juased ayy jo ped |esbajul ue ale sajou Builuedwosde ay |

68C'G6L'L  § | (G¥9'L) $ [ $ 610°1 $ 76E'S $ 7.6'87. $ 605°9ZY $ 0Z0Z ‘1€ 19qwa93( Jo se aduejeg
129'G¢E 6.V Zrlee - - = = awooul sAlsuayaudwod |ejo |
[FA4 6.v = = = = = 0202 ‘1€ 1aquiada papusa Jeak ay} o} awooul aAIsuayaldwod 13O
rliee - Zrl'se - - - - 020Z ‘1€ Jaquiada papusa Jeak sy} .o} awodul BN
= = 98 (98) & = - anasal [e1oads Jo [BsIanay
(20571 = (208'vH) = = = - SpuapiAlp yseo
- - (z0o9'L) = z09't o o anasal [ebaq
sBuiwea paulejal 0z 40 uonnquisip pue uoljeudosddy
SITYLLL ¥z1'2) €209} GOL'L 06.°€ 7.6'82. 605°9ZF 6102 ‘1€ 19qwa99( Jo se aduejeg
$00°G | (610°1) €z091 = = = = ($50]) aWooul dAISUBYRIdWOD [BJ0 |
(610°L) (610°1) - - - - - 6102 ‘1€ Joquaoa papua Jeak ay} 1o} (ss0]) awoaul aAIsuayaIdwod Jayio
€z0'91 - 2091 = = W = 6102 ‘1S Joqwiada papua Jeak ay} Jo} awoou| BN
(1€2'62) = (1€2'62) = = = = SpUSPIAIP UseD
® = (888) 888 = = = anesal |e1vads
- - (Zo¥'S) o 20¥'c = s anesal [ebaq
sBuiwea paulejal g0z 40 uoinquisip pue uopeudoiddy
200'681°} $ | (GoL'L) $ 120'vS $ 212 $ 88¢ $ 7.6'821 $ 60G'9ZF $ 6102 ‘| Aenuer Jo se sauejeg
suonesado ubialoy jo
STIETITEN -3
_M_“__“M_”_.”_M_uu sBujuiea anasal amasal snidins T
; ainquLysipu eload eba n
Aynba |ejo | woy Bunnsal paingusipun |elsag | 1 [enden .
s9oUalaYIp
abueyox3y
Aunbs Jayio sBuiwes pauleley lended
jualed sy} Jo s1aUMO 0} 3|qejngune Alinb3

(S1e]|0Q UBMIB] MBN 4O SPUBSNOL] Ul SUNOWY)
6L0Z PUe 0Z0Z ‘LE Jaquiadag papus sieak ayj 1og
ALIND3 NI SIONVYHI 40 SLININFLYLS A3LVYAITOSNOD
S3YVYIAISENS ANY NOILYHOdYOI ADOTONHI3AL SIANY

27



28



Attachment 4 Independent Auditors’ Report and Unconsolidated Financial Statements

29



30



31



32



33



34



noyn BueyD-ueH : 19210 [elDURUIS JBIUD

ur Buiy-uAr : Juepisald

res] rey-Buipy : uewlieyn

‘sjuswiale)s [eoueul Auo Auedwod wusled ay) jo Hed jeibajul ue ale sajou Buliluedwoosoe ay |

00001 818 /6L $ | 0000L 98€'8.E '} $
3¥'6¢ 18Z°00F £6°¢C YE6'ESY

€0 899y €0 269y

00 LES €00 334

oL'sl £¥0°'G02 L0'Le Lrv062

198 6v69L1 L 0vr8°z0l

17 £TY'eC Sl €€T'IC

99°¢ £.9'6 6v'C LIEYE

2s0L LEG'/G6 2049 Z5v'vZ6

LEL 0LL°LL 9g'L 0.6l

ZLo 809°L GLo 6661

c00 181 100 601

GL'€ 61605 658 Ziy'8LL

FARe Visra 7 209 1¥9'e8

or's zeees ¥’ 00L'GL

16'€C 00G°Gze 90°¢clt 000°08}

8¥'0¢ 868°ELY $ | size it $

sjesse [ej0]

SJosse JUalind-Uou [e1o |

sysodap a|gepuniay

sjesse xe] palialeQg

sjesse a|qibueyy|

sjesse asn-jo-Jybiy

Juswdinba pue jueld ‘Apedold

poyaw Ajinba ayy Buish 1o} pajunoooe sjusWISaAU|
S}9sse Jualind-uoN

S}osse JuaLnd [ejo]
sjuswAedald
S3LI0JUBAU|
s9|geAlodal Jayi0
J8u ‘saiped pajejel-sa|qeARIal apel |
18U ‘sa|qeAipdal apel |
UaLIND ‘S}esse JorNuUoD
JUaLIND )S0D PZILOWE Je painseaw S}asse [ejoueul
sjusjealinbs yses pue ysen
sjosse Jualiny

%

610 ‘L€ JeaquedeQ

%

0202 ‘L€ JequiadeQ

S810N

$138sV

(stejjog uemie] maN JO SPUBSNOL) Ul SJUNOWY)
610Z PUE 0ZOZ ‘L€ JoqWweda(q o Sy
S133HS FONVIVE ATNO ANVAINOD LNIFHVd
NOILYHOdY¥OD ADOTONHOIL S3ANY

3SBUIUD Ul panss] ABUIBLO SIUSWIRIE]S [eloUBUl JO UoNesuel] Usipud

35




noyo Bueyn-ueH : Jeo1O [eloURUIL JBIYD

ur] Buln-UAr © Juspiseld

1es] ley-Buily : uewleyn

‘sjuswae)s [eloueul Auo Auedwos juaied ay) Jo Led jelbsjul ue ale ssjou BuiAuedwoooe ay |

Aynbe pue sanyjiqgel| [e3oL

Ainba [ejo .
Ainbs Jey0
sbBulules pauejal [ejo|
sbulules payngLIsipun
anIesal [epads
anlesal [ebo
sbulules pauleley
snidins euden
300)S UOWIWIOD
feyided
jualed ay) jo siaumo o} ajqengupe Ajnbg

salyiqel| [ejo |
So|Igel| JusINd-UoU [ejo |
Jua.LInouUoU ‘safjligel| 8sea
solljiqel] JUalINd-uoN

36

nijgel| sses
ss|gefed Jayi0
sa|qeled apel |
UBLIND ‘safljigel| JorRIUOD

0000l | 8L8GE'L $ | ooooL | 98e'8Et $
S1'98 GITYILL 2.°98 632°G6) |
(91°0) (y21°2) 21 0) (Gr9'L)
(1 81602 10'€ £GG LY
EIN €209l 65T Zvlce
800 GOL'L 100 6L0°L
820 06.°¢ 620 Z68's
(8)9
69€G 2/6'82L 6825 2/6'82L (6)9
Lle 605'9Zy ¥6°0€ 60G'9ZY (6)9
ZGEl £YG'e8l 8Z°¢l 166281
L1 £67°G01 699 01226
101 £67'G0L 699 012'Z6 (zZL)9 v
GL'G 0608 669 181°06
L0 62T o0 Z6%'G
5 £G - ov
160 ¥80°€L 960 £82'cl (zZL)9 'y
£6C GZ8'6E GG'E ¥68'sy L
s 62 z00 962
89') r18'2z $ | 991 228'2C $ 2019y
% 6102 'I.€ Joquedag % 0202 ‘1€ Jequedeg S3J0N

ALINDI ANV S3LLITIGVIT

S133HS IONVTVE ATNO ANVdINOD LNIHVd

(stejjoq Uemie] maN JO SPUBSNOU} Ul SJUNOWY)
6102 Pue 0Z0Z ‘1§ Jequiede( jo sy

NOILVYIOdYUOD ADOTONHOIL SIANY

3SBUIUD Ul panss| Aeuibio SjUsWSels [eloueui] Jo UONe[SUeBl] Usibug



37



noyg Bueyg-ueH : J9dO [eloueUld JBIYD

I Buin-uAr : Juapisald

les| [ey-Buly : ueuueyy

‘sjusiale)s |eloueuly Ajuo Auedwod juated sy jo ped jeibajul ue aie sajou BulAuedwodsde ay|

68€'G6L°L  § | (G¥9'L) $ Zrl'ee $ | 6L0°L $ | z6g's $ 7.6'87L $ 605°9Z¥ $ 0Z0Z ‘€ 19qua0a(Q Jo se aouefeg
129'eg 6% [ # = = = awooul ansuayaldwod B0 |
(A4 6.7 m = = = - 0202 ‘ 1€ Jaquada papus Jeak ayj Jo} awooul aAIsusyaidwod s yio
Zrl'se - rliee - - - - 0Z0Z ‘1€ Jaquiada papusa Jeak ayj Joj awooul 9N
= = 98 (98) & = - anasal [e1oads Jo [esioney
(20s'v1) = (20571 s = = - SPUSPIAIP UYseD
- - (z09't) - 209°1L - - aniasal [eba]
sBuiwes paulejal 6 1.0z Jo uonnquisip pue uoneudoiddy
SLTVLLL vzl €209 GOL'L 06.°¢ T.6'87L 605°9Z¥ 610C ‘1€ 1oque0aQ Jo se aouefeg
¥00°G | B10°}) €209l = = = = (s50]) aWwodul dAIsUdYaIdwod 80|
(610°}) 610°1) - - - - - 6102 ‘1€ Jaquada papus Jeak ay) 1o} (Ss0|) awodu| aAIsuayaldwod Jayio
¢z0'91 - €20'01 = = - - 6107 ‘1€ Jaquaoa papua Jeak ayj Joj awooul JoN
(1£2'62) = (1£2'62) = = = = SPUSPIAIP Yse)
= = (888) 888 = = = anesal [e1oadg
- - (zov'e) o o' = = ansasal [ebeq
sBuiwea pauleal g0z 40 uonnquisip pue uoleudoiddy
zoo'e8L'L  $ | (soL'h) $ 120've $ | 212 $ | s8¢ $ T.6'87L $ 60S°9ZY $ 6107 ‘| Auenuer jo se dduejeg
suonesado ubialoy jo
SUENTEN A
_M“__“M_“ﬂwh_w_u sBujuiea anasal anesal p S Toios
: 2INqLISIpU e10ad ebo SnIEINg
Aynba |ejo | woy Bunnsas pangusipun |eloedg |eba7 [enden ueidyass
EERIEYETIT)
abueyoxg
Aunba Jay10 sbuiwes paureley |ended

jualted ay Jo siaumo 0} 9|qeinguie Ainbg

(s1e||0Q UBMIB] MBN JO SPUBSNOY} Ul SjUNowy)

6L0Z PUe 0Z0Z ‘L€ J2qWadaq papua sieak ayj 104
ALIND3A NI SIONYHD 4O SLNIWILYLS ATNO ANVJINOD LNI¥Yd

NOILYHOdY¥0I ADOTONHIIL SIANY

35aUIND Ul panss| A[eUBlQ SIUSUIRIElS [EloUB Ul JO UONe[SUBl] ysipug

38



39



Attachment 5 List of Director Candidates (including Independent Director Candidates)

Andes Technology Corporation

List of Director Candidates
(Including Independent Director Candidates)

Position Candidates Educat1gp Current Positions Previous Positions
Recognitions
Director Mediatek Master Of Director, Andes Technology Vice Chairman, Richtek
Capital Corp. Electrical Corp. Technology
Representative: | Engineering, Independent Director, AOPEN | SVP, Mediatek Inc.
Andrew Chang | New York Solutions Corp.
Polytechnic Director, Mediatek Foundation
University , Chairman, Maisense Inc.
USA
Director National Ph.D. In Director, Andes Technology Assistant Professor, Department Of
Development Electrical Corp. Electrical Engineering, National
Fund Engineering, Associate Professor, Chiao Tung University
Representative: | University Of Department Of Electrical Assistant Professor, Department Of
Herming Southern Engineering, National Chiao Communications Engineering,
Chiuech California Tung University National Chiao Tung University
Asia Silicon Valley Director, TWEMBA
Development Agency Member Of Digital Wireless
(ASVDA) Chief Human Transmission Platform Supervision
Resources Officer Group, Government Information
Office, Executive Yuan
Member Of Cable Broadcasting
And Television Review Committee,
NCC
Member Of Cable Broadcasting
And Television Review Committee,
Government Information Office,
Executive Yuan
Member Of Digital Radio Review
Committee, Government
Information Office, Executive Yuan
Member Of Radio Review
Committee, Government
Information Office, Executive Yuan
Director Jyh-Ming Lin MSEE, Portland | Director, President & CEO, President, Andes Technology Corp.
State Andes Technology Corp. VP Of Sales, Faraday Technology
University, Chairman, Everest Peaks Corp.
Oregon, USA. Technology Corporation. Business Manager, UMC
Chairman, Andes Technology
(Samoa) Corporation.
Chairman, Andes Technology
(Wuhan) Corporation.
Chairman, Andes Technology
USA Corporation.
Chairman, Andes Technology
Shanghai Corporation.
Director Hong-Men Su Ph.D. in Director, President & CTO, CTO & Executive Vice President,
Computer Andes Technology Corp. Andes Technology Corp.
Science ,Univer | Director, Andes Technology Chief Architect, Faraday
sity of Illinois (Wuhan) Corporation. Technology Corp.

Director, Andes Technology
USA Corporation.

Director & President, Andes
Technology Shanghai
Corporation.

Sr. Staff, Sun Microsystems

Sr. Staff, Afara Websystems
C-Cube Micro Director, Silicon
Graphics

Sr. Engineer, Intergraph Corp.

40




Position

Candidates

Education

Current Positions

Previous Positions

Recognitions
Independe Chien-Kuo Bachelor’s Independent Director, Andes Independent Director, Spirox Corp.
nt Director Yang Degree, Technology Corp. Independent Director, M31
Tamkang Chairman/Partner, Diwan & Technology Corporation
University Company Accounting Firm.

Department Of

Chairman, Diwan

International Management Advisory
Trade. Services Co., Ltd.
Independent Director,
Leadtrend Technology
Corporation
Supervisor, Youngtek
Electronics Corporation
Chairman, Tien Da Investment
Co.
Independe Tien-Fu Chen | PhD in Independent Director, Andes Deputy Director Of National Center
nt Director Electrical and Technology Corp. For High-Performance Computing
Computer Professor, Department Of (NCHC)
Engineering, Computer Science, National Professor, Department Of Computer
University of Chiao Tung University Science And Information
Washington Engineering, National Chung Cheng
University
Independe Jiun-Hao Lai | Master Of Independent Director, Silicon | General Manager, Global Unichip
nt Director Science In Optronics, Inc. Corp.
Electrical And Independent Director,
Computer Truelight Corporation
Engineering, Director, Giga Solution
University Of Corporation
California, Director, Megachips Corp.

Santa Barbara

Director, Wolley Inc.
Member Of Remuneration
Committee, Focaltech
Systems Co., Ltd.
Consultant, Global Unichip
Corp.

41




Attachment 6 The position and company name list of the candidate for the Directors
(including Independent Directors)

Position

Name

Company name

Current positions

Juristic Person
Director

National Development Fund

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Corporate director

Vanguard International Semiconductor Co.

Corporate director

Infinity Communication Tech. Inc.

Corporate director

Metanoia Communications Inc.

Corporate director

J qristic Person MediaTek Capital Corp. Chunghwa Precision Test Tech.Co., Ltd Corporate director
Director
Mars Semiconductor Corp. Corporate director
Cyberon Corporation Corporate director
Chingis Technology Corporation Corporate director
Cmos-Crystal Technology Co., Limited Corporate director
Mediatek Research Corp. Corporate director
Innofusions Technology Corp. Corporate director
Faceheart Inc. Corporate director
Repr(?sentative of MediaTek Cap ital Corp. Aopen Solutions Corp. Independent Director
juristic person Representative:
director Andrew Chang Mediatek Foundation Director
Maisense Inc Chairman
In'dependent Chien-Kuo Yang Diwan & Company Accounting Firm Chairman/Partner,
Director
Diwan Management Advisory Services Co., Ltd. |Chairman
Leadtrend Technology Corporation Independent Director
Tien Da Investment Co Chairman
In'dependent Jiun-Hao Lai Silicon Optronics, Inc. Independent Director
Director

Truelight Corporation Independent Director
Giga Solution Corporation Director
Megachips Corp., Japan Director
Wolley Inc, USA Director

42




Attachment 7 Regulation Governing the Issuance of Restricted Shares for Employee in 2021

Andes Technology Corporation
Regulation Governing the Issuance of Restricted Shares for Employee in 2021

1. Purpose of Issuing

In order to attract and retain the professional talents needed by the Company, encourage employees’
will for long-term service and enhance employees’ senses of belonging and productivity to generate
the profit for the Company and shareholders collectively, this Regulations on the Issuing of New
Restricted Shares for Employee was established in accordance with the related provisions in
Paragraph 9, Article 267 of the Company Act and the “Regulations Governing the Offering and
Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers” (hereinafter referred to as the “Offering and Issuance
Criteria”) promulgated by the Financial Supervisory Commission, Executive Yuan.

2. Issuing Period

It is conducted at once or several times, depending on the needs, within 1 year from the date of the
effective notice issued by the competent authority. The actual date of issuance is to be set by the
Chairman of the Board authorized by the Board of Directors.

3. Employee Qualification and the Number of Shares Awarded

(1) The distribution of new shares is limited to the employees of the Company and domestic
and foreign subordinate Companies. The term "subordinate Companies" shall be defined
under Articles 369-2 through 369-3, Articles 369-9 and 369-11 of the Company Act. The
employees who would be given the shares and the number of the shares awarded will
consider depend on factors such as the years of service, job level, work performance,
overall contribution, special achievements or other needed to be referenced condition in
management,. And the plan those factors will be set by the Chairman of the Board and
submitted to the Board of Directors by a majority vote at a meeting attended by over
two-thirds of the directors for approval; however, for those employees with managerial
identity should first obtain the approval from the Remuneration Committee before
submitting to Board of Directors.

(2) The cumulative number of shares subscribable through the employee stock options issued
to a single employee in accordance with paragraph 1, Article 56-1 of the “Regulations
Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers” plus the
cumulative number of restricted new shares received by the same employee shall not
exceed 0.3% of the Company’s total number of issued shares; and the above in
combination with the cumulative number of shares subscribable through employee stock
options issued in accordance with paragraph 1, Article 56 of the “Regulations Governing
the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers” shall not exceed 1% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares. However, with special approval from the central
competent authority of the relevant industry, the application of the above-mentioned
restriction of the ratio may be exempted. With respect to the recognition and calculation of
the numbers of the above-mentioned shares shall be handled pursuant to the Regulations
Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers and related
provisions.

4. Total Number of New Shares
The total amount of the new restricted shares for employees is NT$ 600,000. The par value for
each share is NT$10, issuing a total of 60,000 common shares.

5. Issuing Condition:

(1) Issuing Price: Each share is issued at NT$0, that is, no cash value price is attached to the

shares issued to the employees.

(2) Vesting Conditions:

I. The issuance of new restricted shares for employees shall be conducted in
accordance with the following vesting conditions :

A. For those employees who are awarded the new restricted shares for employee

being still at service after the expiration for the company or a subsidiary

company of the following terms and achieving the performance criteria set by
43



3)
(4)

IL.

the Company (performance requirement is set by the Board of Directors), the
proportion of shares reaching the vesting conditions is as follows. For any the
new restricted shares for employee who does not distributed but have not
reached fulfill the vesting conditions, the Company will take back the shares
without compensation to the employee and conduct cancellation to those shares.
Serving the expiration of one year: 33%

Serving the expiration of two years: 33%

Serving the expiration of three years: 34%

B. The company’s operating objectives are based on revenue (Revenue) or earnings
per share (EPS) as performance indicators. Achieving any performance indicator
is deemed to have achieved the company’s operating objectives; the
determination of achieving the operating objectives is based on the annual
consolidated financials verified by an accountant. The report forms the basis of
calculation.

After the expiration of one year, revenue or earnings per share has grown by
more than 10% (inclusive) over the previous year.

After the expiration of two years, revenue or earnings per share has grown by
more than 10% (inclusive) over the previous year.

After the expiration of three years, revenue or earnings per share has grown by
more than 10% (inclusive) over the previous year.

For any employee who does not fulfill the vesting conditions, the Company will

take back the shares without compensation to the employee and cancel those shares.

If the employee, after receiving the new restricted shares from the Company, violates
this Regulation, Trust Contract, or the Labor Contract of the Company or the
subsidiaries of the Company, Non-disclosure Agreement, Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles, Ethical Corporate Management Principles, Code of Ethical
Conduct, Rules Governing Information Safety, Non-competition Agreement and
Work Rules etc., the Company is entitled to take back the new restricted shares that
had been issued to the employees but not yet fulfilled the vesting conditions without
compensation to the employee and conduct cancellation to those shares.

Type of Shares Issued: Common Shares of the Company

For employees who do not meet the vesting conditions or there is an occurrence of
inheritance on the restricted shares for employee, it should be handled by the following
methods:

L

IL.

General Leave (voluntary/retirement/severance/expulsion):

In the event that the employee resigns from the position of the Company or the
subsidiaries of the Company, except it is due to the job transfer according to
Subparagraph 5 under this Paragraph which shall not be influenced by the transfer,
the Company is entitled, pursuant to the law, to take back the new restricted shares
that had been issued to the employee but not yet fulfilled the vesting conditions
without compensation to the employee and conduct cancellation to those shares.
Leave of Absence:

In the event that the employee takes a leave of absence from the Company or the
subsidiaries of the Company, the rights on the new restricted shares of which the
vesting conditions are not fulfilled will be recovered from the date when the
employee returns to the position. However, the conditions of vesting period shall be
deferred according to the period of leave of absence. After the deferral is made
according to the preceding provision, if the date on which the vesting conditions
become fulfilled is not March 31, June 30, September 30 or December 31, the shares
issuance date shall be adjusted later to the date on March 31, June 30, September 30
or December 31 (among the fore mentioned dates, the earliest one after the date
which investing conditions become fulfilled shall be the shares issuance date). If
such date is holiday, the issuance of shares shall be postponed to the earliest business
day.

44



III. General Death:

For the new restricted shares issued to employees that have not yet fulfilled the

vesting conditions, the Company is entitled, pursuant to the law, to take back the

shares without compensation to the employee and conduct cancellation to those
shares.
IV. Occupational hazards:

A. Those who are unable to continue serving the Company due to the physical
disability caused by occupational hazards, their new restricted shares for
employee that do not fulfill the vesting conditions will continue to fulfill the
vesting condition according to the proportion schedule in Section (2) of this
Article.

B. Those employees who died of occupational hazards, their new restricted shares
for employee that do not fulfill the vesting conditions will be inherited by their
inheritor from the date of the employee’s death and continue to fulfill the
vesting condition according to the proportion schedule in Section (2) of this
Article.

V. Job Transfer:

If employees are transferred to affiliated companies or other companies (except

subsidiaries), their new restricted shares for employee should be handled in

accordance with the method stated in the First Paragraph, “General Leave”, of this

Section. However, if the employee is assigned to the affiliated companies or other

companies by the Company, the new restricted shares for employee received shall

not be affected by the transfer.
VI. Employees or their heirs should follow the trust agreement to claim their shares
which have fulfilled the vesting conditions.

6. The restricted rights on the newly issued shares before fulfilling the vesting condition

(1)

(2)

The new restricted shares for employee issued under this Regulation will be handed over
to stock trust custody under the employees’ names. After the employees receive the new
shares and before the vesting conditions are fulfilled, the restricted rights are as follows:

a. After the employees receive the new shares and before the vesting conditions are
fulfilled, besides inheritance, the employees shall not perform any other actions to
these new restricted shares including selling, mortgaging, transferring, gifting, and
pledging.

b. The attending, proposing, speaking, voting rights of shareholders’ meeting are carried
out by the entrusted organization according to the contract.

Except the limits due to trust agreement mentioned in the previous Section, the new

restricted shares for employee issued under this Regulation, before fulfilling the vesting

conditions, shall have other rights, including but not limited to: dividends, bonus and
allocation rights of capital surplus, stock options on cash capital increase and voting rights
are all the same as the common stocks issued by the Company.

7. Procedure for receiving the new shares

(1)

)

After the employees receive the new restricted shares for employee, and the Company
posts the number of shares issued to the employees on the Company’s shareholder list, the
Company will deliver the newly issued common stock or the certificate of new shares
rights via the account book transferring method. In addition, the shares will be handed to
the Trust Custody during the vesting condition restricted period according to the trust
agreement.

The new restricted shares for employee are issued by the Company in accordance with
this Regulation, and the Company will register the changes in accordance with relevant
laws.

45



8.  Other Important Matters

(1) This Regulation has to be approved by at least one half of the member of the Board of
Directors attending the meeting and the members of the Board of Directors attending the
meeting must account for more than two third of the total members of the Board of
Directors. If there is any amendment to this Regulation before issuing, the same
procedure shall be followed. If during the reviewing process, there is a need to amend this
Regulation under the request of the competent authority, the Chairman of the Board is
authorized to amend this Regulation and it may only be issued after the subsequent
ratification by the Board of Directors.

(2) The taxes derived from receiving the new restricted shares for employee, shall be handled
in accordance with the current laws and regulations of R.O.C.

(3) Anything that is not stipulated in this Regulation shall be subject to the related provisions.

46



Appendix



Appendix 1 Andes Articles of Incorporation
Andes Technology Corporation

Article of Incorporation
(Translation)
Section I — General Provisions

Article 1

The Company shall be incorporated as a company limited by shares under the Company Act of the
Republic of China, and its name shall be Andes Technology Corporation. (In the English language)

Article 2

The scope of business of the Corporation shall be as follows:
1. CCO01080: Electronic parts and components manufacture.
1501010: Product design.
F401010: International trade business.
1301010: Information & software services.
1301020: Data processing services.
F601010: Intellectual property.
Research, design, development, manufacture, and selling of the following products:
I. RISC CPU for Embedded Processor SoC
i. Generic platform
il. Network platform
iii. Multimedia platform
II. Integrated circuits (ICs)
i. Platform SoC including Andes CPU
ii. Other integrated circuits supporting Platform SoC

Article 3

Nowvbkwbd

The Company is headquartered in the Hsinchu Science-Based Industrial Park in Taiwan, and shall
be free, upon approval of the Board of Directors and government authorities in charge, to set up
representative or branch offices at various locations within or outside the territory of the Republic
of China, whenever the Company deems it necessary.

Article 4

Public announcements of the Company shall be made in accordance with Article 28 of the
Company Act.

Article 4-1

The Company may invest to other companies based on business requirements and may invest to the
resolution of the Board of Directors based on actual requirements. When the Company becomes a
shareholder of limited liability of another company, the total amount of the company’s investment
will not be subject to the restriction of not more than 40% of the Company’s paid-in capital as
provided in Article 13 of the Company Act.

Article 4-2

The Company may provide endorsement and guarantee to other companies. The process shall be
handled in accordance with the Company’s Operating Procedures of Endorsement/Guarantee.
Unless otherwise under any of the circumstances in Article 15 of the Company Act, the capital of a
company shall not be lend to any shareholder of the company or any other person.

Section II — Capital Stock
Article 5

The total capital amount of the Company shall be in the amount of 700 Million New Taiwan
Dollars (NT$700,000,000), divided into 70 million (70,000,000) shares at NT$10 par value each
share , and may be issued in installments subject to the resolution of the Board of Directors. Within

48



the aforementioned capital, NT$70,000,000 will be reserved for issuing stock options, and may be
issued in installments in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors.

The company may issue stock options that are not subject to the exercise price restriction set out in
Article 53 of the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities
Issuers. The Company is required to obtain the consent of at least two-thirds of the voting rights
represented at a shareholders meeting. The Company is allowed to register multiple issues over a
period of one year from the date of the shareholders resolution.

Where the Company proposes to transfer any treasury shares purchased in accordance with the laws,
the transferees shall include the employees of subordinate companies that meet certain
qualification(s).

Where the Company issues any employee stock options, the employees who are qualified to
subscribe to such employee stock options shall include employees of subordinate companies that
meet certain qualification(s).

Where the Company issues any new shares, the employees who are qualified to subscribe to such
shares shall include employees of subordinate companies that meet certain qualification(s).

Where the Company issues any employee restricted shares, the employees who are qualified to
subscribe to such shares shall include employees of subordinate companies that meet certain
qualification(s).

Article 6

The share certificates of the Company shall all be name-bearing share certificates. The Company
may be exempted from printing share certificates if the shares are registered with a domestic
securities depository enterprise.

Article 7

Registration for transfer of shares shall be suspended 60 days immediately before the date of annual
general shareholders’ meeting, and 30 days immediately before the date of any special Shareholders’
meeting, or within 5 days before the day on which dividend, bonus, or any other benefit is

scheduled to be paid by the Company.

The Company shall handle its stock affairs for shareholders in accordance with the Company Act,
the Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies,
relevant laws, rules and regulations.

Section III — Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholders' meeting can be divided into regular meetings and special meetings. Regular meetings
are convened once a year and usually within six months of the end of each fiscal year. The regular
meeting is convened by the Board of Directors according to the law. Special meetings may be
convened according to the law when necessary. The procedure of convening Shareholders’
Meetings shall be in accordance with the Company Act, relevant laws, rules and regulations of the
Republic of China.

Article 9

Notices shall be sent to all shareholders for the convening of annual general shareholders meetings
at least 30 days in advance for annual general shareholders meetings and at least 15 days in advance
for special shareholders meetings. The meeting date, venue and the purpose(s) for convening such
shareholders meeting shall be clearly stated in the meeting notices.

The cause(s) or subject(s) of a meeting of shareholders to be convened shall be indicated in the
individual notice to be given to shareholders; and the notice may, as an alternative, be given by
means of electronic transmission, after obtaining a prior consent from the recipient(s) thereof.

Article 10

If a shareholder is unable to attend a shareholders meeting, he/she may appoint a representative to
attend it, with a Shareholder Proxy Form issued by the Company, in accordance with Article 177,

49



177-1 and 177-2 of the Company Act of the Republic of China, Article 25-1 of Securities and
Exchange Act, and the Rules Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings
of Public Companies.

Article 11

Each share is entitled to one voting right; except those shares for which the voting rights are
restricted or excluded as stipulated in the Company Law, other laws and regulations. The company
shall be classified the electronic means as one of the method for shareholders to exercise their
voting rights. A shareholder who exercises his voting right in writing or by way of electronic
transmission shall be deemed to have attended the shareholders' meeting in person. Voting rights
shall be conducted in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Article 12

Except as otherwise provided by other laws or regulations, shareholders meetings may be held if
attended by shareholders in person or by proxy representing more than 50% of the total issued and
outstanding capital stock of the Company, and resolutions shall be adopted at the meeting with the
concurrence of a majority of the votes held by shareholders present at the meeting. At the
shareholders meeting, except as otherwise provided in The Company Act and the Article of
Incorporation, the details of which shall be handled in accordance with the Rules of Procedure for
Shareholders Meetings.

Article 13

The shareholders’ meeting shall be presided by the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company. In case the Chairman is on leave or otherwise cannot exercise his duty and authority for
any reason, the Chairman shall appoint a director to act as his deputy; otherwise, the directors shall
elect from among themselves a chairman to preside over the shareholders meeting. If a shareholders
meeting is convened by a person other than the Board of Directors, the shareholders meeting shall
be chaired by that convener. If there are two or more conveners for a shareholders meeting, one of
them shall be elected to chair the meeting.

Article 14

The resolutions of the shareholders meeting shall be recorded in the minutes, and such minutes shall
be signed by or sealed with the chop of the Chairman of the meeting. Shareholders shall be
notified of the minutes within 20 days after the meeting. The production and distribution of the
minutes may be done in electronic form. The minutes specified above shall be distributed in
accordance with the provisions of the Company Act, relevant laws and regulations.

Article 15

To revoke public issuance after the Company publicly issuing stocks, the share certificates shall be
approved by the resolution of a shareholders meeting, and apply to the competent authority. This
Article shall remain unchanged during the period of Emerging Stock Board and publicly listing on
TWSE or TPEx.

Section IV — Directors and Audit Committee
Article 16

The Company shall have at least five but no more than nine directors with the actual number to be
determined by the Board. The term of office for directors shall be three years. The directors shall be
elected from among the nominees listed in the roster of director candidates pursuant to the
candidates nomination system, and be elected at the shareholders’ meeting by the shareholders from
any person with legal capacity in accordance with the Company Law. All of the directors are
eligible for re-election.

The cumulative voting method shall be used for election of the directors at this Corporation. Each
share will have voting rights in number equal to the directors to be elected, and may be cast for a
single candidate or split among multiple candidates. Those receiving ballots representing the
highest numbers of voting rights will be elected sequentially as directors according to their
respective numbers of votes.

50



To conform to the Securities and Exchange Act, the Company shall have, among the
aforementioned directors, at least three independent directors, and the number of independent
directors shall be no less than one-fifth of the total number of the directors. The independent
directors shall be elected from among the nominees listed in the roster of director candidates
pursuant to the candidates’ nomination system. The relevant professional qualifications, restrictions
on shareholdings and concurrent positions held, assessment of independence, method of nomination,
method of election, and other matters for compliance with respect to Independent Directors shall be
governed by the relevant provisions of the Company Act and Securities and Exchange Act.

Article 17

The Board of Directors shall be formed by directors. The Directors shall elect from among
themselves a Chairman of the Board of Directors, by a majority vote in a meeting attended by over
two-thirds of the Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be the chairman of
shareholders’ meetings, and shall have the authority to represent the Company.

Article 18

In case the Chairman of the Board of Directors is on leave or cannot exercise his powers, he may
designate a proxy in accordance with Article 208 of the Company Law.

Article 19

Directors shall attend the Meeting of the Board of Directors. When a Director is unable to attend
any Meeting of the

Board of Directors, he may appoint another Director to attend on his behalf by written authorization,
but no Director may act as proxy for more than one Director.

Article 20

Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be convened by the Chairman of the Board of Directors,
unless otherwise regulated by the Company Act. Directors may be notified of the Board of
Directors meeting via written notices, as E-mail or fax. Except as otherwise provided in the
Company Act of the Republic of China, a meeting of the Board of Directors may be held if attended
by a majority or more of total Directors and resolutions shall be adopted with the concurrence of the
majority or more of the Directors present at the meeting. Resolutions adopted at the meeting of the
Board of Directors shall be recorded in the minutes and signed or sealed by the chairman of the
meeting and the recorder. The minutes shall be distributed to each director within twenty (20) days
after the meeting.

Article 20-1

Remuneration for directors of the Company shall be evaluated by the compensation committee
according to their respective participation in operation and value of contribution, and the board of
directors is authorized to determine their remuneration according to the general standard in the same
industries and the Company’s business operation.

Article 20-2

The Company shall form an Audit Committee, which is composed of all Independent Directors.
Details including number of members, terms, responsibilities and rule of meeting shall be stipulated
separately in the Organization Rules of Audit Committee in accordance with the rules in the
“Regulations Governing the Exercise of Powers by Audit Committees of Public Companies”.

51



Section V -Management of the Company
Article 21

The Company may appoint managers. Appointment and discharge and the remuneration of the
managerial personnel shall be in accordance with Article 29 of the Company Law. The scope of
duties and power of managers shall be authorized by the board of directors, and The Board of
Directors may authorize the Chairman to determine.

Section VI — Financial Reports
Article 22

The Company’s fiscal year shall be from January 1st of each year to December 31st of the same
year. After the end of each fiscal year, in accordance with the Company Act, the following reports
shall be prepared by the Board of Directors, , and such documents shall be submitted to the general
shareholders' meeting for acceptance:

1. Business Report;

2. Financial Statements; and

3. The surplus earning distribution or loss off-setting proposals
Article 23

If there is any profit for a specific fiscal year, the Company shall allocate no less than 2% of the
profit as employee’s compensation and shall allocate at a maximum of 1% of the profit as
remuneration to Directors, provided that the Company’s accumulated losses shall have been
covered in advance. Employee’s compensation may be distributed in the form of shares or in cash,
and employees qualified to receive such compensation may include employees from affiliates
companies who meet certain qualification. The Board of Directors is authorized to determine the
qualification of such employees. The remuneration to Directors shall be paid in cash.

Article 23-1

If there is any profit in an annual general financial statement of the Company, such profit shall be

distributed in the following orders:

1. Reserve for tax payments.

2. Offset accumulated losses in previous years, if any.

3. Legal reserve, which is 10% of leftover profits. However, this restriction does not apply in the
event that the amount of the accumulated legal reserve equals or exceeds the Company’s total
capital stock.

4. Allocation or reverse of special reserves as required by law or government authorities.

5. The remaining net profits and the retained earnings from previous years will be allocated as
shareholders’ dividend. The Board of Directors will prepare a distribution proposal. If the
distribution proposal in form of new shares to be issued by the company should submit the same
to the shareholders’ meeting for review and approval by a resolution; If such surplus earning is
distributed in the form of cash, it shall be approved by a meeting of the board of directors.

The Company pursuant to the provisions of Paragraph Five, Article 240 hereof, authorizes the

distributable dividends and bonuses in whole or in part may be paid in cash after a resolution has

been adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of the board of directors attended by two-thirds of the

total number of directors. Or the company pursuant to the provisions of Paragraph One, Article 241

hereof, may distribute its legal reserve and the following capital reserve, in whole or in part, by

cash; and in addition thereto a report of such distribution shall be submitted to the shareholders’
meeting.

The policy of dividend distribution should reflect factors such as sustainable development, stable

growth, the interest of the shareholders, and healthy financial structure as the goal. The board of

directors shall make the distribution proposal according to funding needs. The dividends to
shareholders shall be distributed at no lower than 2% of distributable earnings. If the Company
decides to issue dividends, cash dividends shall not be lower than 10% of the total dividends.

52



Section VII —Supplementary Provisions
Article 24

For matters not provided for in the Articles of Incorporation, it shall be handled in accordance with
the Company Act of the Republic of China.

Article 25

These Articles of Incorporation were enacted on February 21, 2005. The first amendment was made
on March 30, 2005, the second amendment was made on October 7, 2005, the third amendment was
made on January 18, 2006, the fourth amendment was made on April 24, 2007, the fifth amendment
was made on June 21, 2012, the sixth amendment was made on October 28, 2014, the seventh
amendment was made on June 17, 2016, the eighth amendment was made on June 18, 2019, and the
ninth amendment was made on October 2, 2019.

53



Appendix 2 Andes Rules and Procedures of Shareholders’ Meeting

Article 1

Andes Technology Corporation

Rules and Procedures of Shareholders’ Meeting

Amendment passed by First Extraordinary General Meeting in 2019 on October 2, 2019

Unless otherwise provided for in applicable laws and regulation or this Company's
Articles of Incorporation, the Company's Shareholders' Meeting Rules and Procedures

shall comply with the following articles.

Article 2 Convening shareholders meetings and shareholders meeting notices

1.

Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, the Company's shareholders
meetings shall be convened by the board of directors.

A notice to convene a regular meeting of shareholders shall be given to each
shareholder no later than 30 days prior to the scheduled meeting date.

A notice to convene a special meeting of sharcholders shall be given to each
shareholder no later than 15 days prior to the scheduled meeting date.

the Company shall prepare electronic versions of the shareholders meeting notice and
proxy forms, and the origins of and explanatory materials relating to all proposals,
including proposals for ratification, matters for deliberation, or the election or
dismissal of directors, and upload them to the Market Observation Post System
(MOPS) within the specified period of time . The Company shall prepare electronic
versions of the shareholders meeting agenda and supplemental meeting materials and
upload them to the MOPS before 21 days before the date of the regular shareholders
meeting or before 15 days before the date of the special shareholders meeting. In
addition, before 15 days before the date of the shareholders meeting, the Company
shall also have prepared the shareholders meeting agenda and supplemental meeting
materials and made them available for review by shareholders at any time. The
meeting agenda and supplemental materials shall also be displayed at the Company
and the professional shareholder services agent designated thereby as well as being
distributed on-site at the meeting place.

The reasons for convening a shareholders meeting shall be specified in the meeting
notice and public announcement. With the consent of the addressee, the meeting
notice may be given in electronic form.

Election or dismissal of directors, amendments to the articles of incorporation, capital
reduction, application for the withdrawal of an IPO, the dissolution, merger, or
demerger of the corporation, or any matter under Article 185, paragraph 1 of the
Company Act, Articles 26-1 and 43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act, or Articles
56-1 and 60-2 of the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities

by Securities Issuers shall be set out in the notice of the reasons for convening the
54



shareholders meeting. None of the above matters may be raised by an extraordinary
motion.

A shareholder who holding 1 percent or more of the total number of issued shares
may submit to the company a written proposal for discussion at a regular
shareholders meeting. Such proposals however are limited to one item only, and
who propose more than one item, will not be included in the meeting agenda. In
addition, when the circumstances of any section about Article 172-1, paragraph 4 of
the Company Act proposed by a shareholder, the board of director may exclude it
from the agenda.

Prior to the book closure date before a regular shareholders meeting is held, the
Company shall publicly announce that it will receive shareholder proposals, and the
location and time period for their submission; the period for submission of
shareholder proposals may not be less than 10 days.

Shareholder-submitted proposals are limited to 300 words, and no proposal
containing more than 300 words will be included in the meeting agenda. The
shareholder making the proposal shall be present in person or by proxy at the regular
shareholders meeting and take part in discussion of the proposal.
Prior to the date for issuance of notice of a shareholders meeting, the Company shall
inform the shareholders who submitted proposals of the proposal screening results,
and shall list in the meeting notice the proposals that conform to the provisions of
this article. At the shareholders meeting the board of directors shall explain the

reasons for exclusion of any shareholder proposals not included in the agenda.

Article 3 The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be the premises of the Company, or a place

easily accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders meeting. The meeting

may begin no earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full consideration shall be

given to the opinions of the independent directors with respect to the place and time of

the meeting.

Article 4 To appoint a proxy to attend a shareholders’ meeting and authorization.

1.

For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the
meeting by providing the proxy form issued by the Company and stating the scope
of the proxy's authorization.

A shareholder may issue only one proxy form and appoint only one proxy for any
given shareholders meeting, and shall deliver the proxy form to the Company
before 5 days before the date of the shareholders meeting. When duplicate proxy
forms are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail unless a declaration is
made to cancel the previous proxy appointment.

After a proxy form has been delivered to the Company, if the shareholder intends

55



to attend the meeting in person or to exercise voting rights by correspondence or
electronically, a written notice of proxy cancellation shall be submitted to the
Company before 2 business days before the meeting date. If the cancellation notice

is submitted after that time, votes cast at the meeting by the proxy shall prevail.

Article 5 Preparation of documents such as the attendance book

1.

The company shall specify in its shareholders meeting notices the time during
which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted, the place to register
for attendance, and other matters for attention.
The time during which shareholder attendance registrations shall be at least 30
minutes prior to the time the meeting commences. The place at which attendance
registrations are accepted shall be clearly marked and a sufficient number of
suitable personnel assigned to handle the registrations.

Shareholders and their proxies shall attend shareholders meetings based on
attendance cards, sign-in cards, or other certificates of attendance. The company
may not arbitrarily add requirements for other documents beyond those showing
eligibility to attend presented by shareholders. Solicitors soliciting proxy forms
shall also bring identification documents for verification.

The company shall furnish the attending Shareholders and their proxies
(collectively, "shareholders") with an attendance book to sign, or attending
shareholders may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in.
The company shall furnish attending shareholders with the meeting agenda book,
annual report, attendance card, speaker's slips, voting slips, and other meeting
materials. Where there is an election of directors, pre-printed ballots shall also be
furnished.
When the government or a juristic person is a shareholder, it may be represented
by more than one representative at a shareholders meeting. When a juristic person
is appointed to attend as proxy, it may designate only one person to represent it in

the meeting.

Article 6 The chair and non-voting participants of a shareholders meeting

1.

If a shareholders meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting shall
be chaired by the chairperson of the board. When the chairperson of the board is
on leave or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of the chairperson, the
vice chairperson shall act in place of the chairperson; if there is no vice
chairperson or the vice chairperson also is on leave or for any reason unable to
exercise the powers of the vice chairperson, the chairperson shall appoint one of
the directors to act as chair. Where the chairperson does not make such a

designation, the directors shall select from among themselves one person to serve

56



as chair.

2. When a managing director or a director serves as chair, as referred to in the
preceding paragraph, the managing director or director shall be one who has held
that position for six months or more and who understands the financial and
business conditions of the company. The same shall be true for a representative of
a juristic person director that serves as chair.

3. It is advisable that shareholders meetings convened by the board of directors be
chaired by the chairperson of the board in person and attended by a majority of the
directors, and at least one member of each functional committee on behalf of the
committee. The attendance shall be recorded in the meeting minutes. If a
shareholders meeting is convened by a party with power to convene but other than
the board of directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting. When there are
two or more such convening parties, they shall mutually select a chair from among
themselves.

4. The Company may appoint its attorneys, certified public accountants, or related

persons retained by it to attend a shareholders meeting in a non-voting capacity.

Article 7 The shareholders meeting attendance calculation and conference.

1. Attendance at sharcholders meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of
shares. The number of shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the
shares indicated by the attendance book and sign-in cards handed in plus the
number of shares whose voting rights are exercised by correspondence or
electronically.

2. The chair shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time. However,
when the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of
issued shares, the chair may announce a postponement, provided that no more than
two such postponements, for a combined total of no more than 1 hour, may be
made. If the quorum is not met after two postponements and the attending
shareholders still represent less than one third of the total number of issued shares,
the chair shall declare the meeting adjourned.

3. If the quorum is not met after two postponements as referred to in the preceding
paragraph, but the attending shareholders represent one third or more of the total
number of issued shares, a tentative resolution may be adopted pursuant to Article
175, paragraph 1 of the Company Act; all shareholders shall be notified of the
tentative resolution and another shareholders meeting shall be convened within 1
month.

4.  When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a

majority of the total number of issued shares, the chair may resubmit the tentative

57



resolution for a vote by the shareholders meeting pursuant to Article 174 of the

Company Act.

Article 8 Discussion of proposals

1.

If a shareholders meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting
agenda shall be set by the board of directors. The meeting shall proceed in the
order set by the agenda, which may not be changed without a resolution of the
shareholders meeting.

The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a
shareholders meeting convened by a party with the power to convene that is not
the board of directors.

The chair may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of
deliberation on the meeting agenda of the preceding two paragraphs (including
extraordinary motions), except by a resolution of the shareholders meeting. If the
chair declares the meeting adjourned in violation of the rules of procedure, the
other members of the board of directors shall promptly assist the attending
shareholders in electing a new chair in accordance with statutory procedures, by
agreement of a majority of the votes represented by the attending shareholders,
and then continue the meeting.

The chair shall allow ample opportunity during the meeting for explanation and
discussion of proposals and of amendments or extraordinary motions put forward
by the shareholders; when the chair is of the opinion that a proposal has been
discussed sufficiently to put it to a vote, the chair may announce the discussion

closed and call for a vote.

Article 9 Shareholder speech

1.

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify on a speaker's slip the
subject of the speech, his/her shareholder account number (or attendance card
number), and account name. The order in which shareholders speak will be set by
the chair.

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker's slip but does not
actually speak shall be deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the speech
does not correspond to the subject given on the speaker's slip, the spoken content
shall prevail.

Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than twice
on the same proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes. If the
shareholder's speech violates the rules or exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the
chair may terminate the speech.

When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not speak or

58



interrupt unless they have sought and obtained the consent of the chair and the
shareholder that has the floor; the chair shall stop any violation.

When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a
shareholders meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on

the same proposal.

6. After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person or

direct relevant personnel to respond.

Article 10 Calculation of voting shares and recusal system

1.
2.

Voting at a shareholders meeting shall be calculated based the number of shares.
With respect to resolutions of shareholders meetings, the number of shares held by
a shareholder with no voting rights shall not be calculated as part of the total
number of issued shares.

When a shareholder is an interested party in relation to an agenda item, and there is
the likelihood that such a relationship would prejudice the interests of the
Company, that shareholder may not vote on that item, and may not exercise voting
rights as proxy for any other shareholder.

The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the
preceding paragraph shall not be calculated as part of the voting rights represented
by attending shareholders.

With the exception of a trust enterprise or a shareholder services agent approved by
the competent securities authority, when one person is concurrently appointed as
proxy by two or more shareholders, the voting rights represented by that proxy
may not exceed 3 percent of the voting rights represented by the total number of
issued shares. If that percentage is exceeded, the voting rights in excess of that

percentage shall not be included in the calculation.

Article 11 Voting, ballot examination and ballot count.

l.

A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the
shares are restricted shares or are deemed non-voting shares under Article 179,
paragraph 2 of the Company Act. The company shall be classified the electronic
means as one of the method for shareholders to exercise their voting rights.

When the Company holds a shareholders meeting, it may allow the shareholders to
exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means. When voting rights
are exercised by correspondence or electronic means, the method of exercise shall
be specified in the shareholders meeting notice. A shareholder exercising voting
rights by correspondence or electronic means will be deemed to have attended the
meeting in person, but to have waived his/her rights with respect to the

extraordinary motions and amendments to original proposals of that meeting; it is

59



therefore advisable that the Company avoid the submission of extraordinary
motions and amendments to original proposals.

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic
means under the preceding paragraph shall deliver a written declaration of intent
to the Company before 2 days before the date of the shareholders meeting. When
duplicate declarations of intent are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail,
except when a declaration is made to cancel the earlier declaration of intent. After
a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or electronic means,
in the event the shareholder intends to attend the shareholders meeting in person, a
written declaration of intent to retract the voting rights already exercised under the
preceding paragraph shall be made known to the Company, by the same means by
which the voting rights were exercised, before 2 business days before the date of
the shareholders meeting. If the notice of retraction is submitted after that time, the
voting rights already exercised by correspondence or electronic means shall
prevail. When a shareholder has exercised voting rights both by correspondence or
electronic means and by appointing a proxy to attend a shareholders meeting, the
voting rights exercised by the proxy in the meeting shall prevail.

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in the Company’s articles of
incorporation, the passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative vote of a
majority of the voting rights represented by the attending shareholders. At the time
of a vote, for each proposal, the chair or a person designated by the chair shall first
announce the total number of voting rights represented by the attending
shareholders, followed by a poll of the shareholders. After the conclusion of the
meeting, on the same day it is held, the results for each proposal, based on the
numbers of votes for and against and the number of abstentions, shall be entered
into the MOPS.

A proposal is deemed to have passed when no attending shareholders gave a
dissent after being inquired by the chair, and the effect thereof is the same as a
vote; if there are dissents, a vote in the preceding paragraph shall be adopted.
When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present
the amended or alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide
the order in which they will be put to a vote. When any one among them is passed,
the other proposals will then be deemed rejected and no further voting shall be
required.

Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be
appointed by the chair, provided that all monitoring personnel shall be
shareholders of the Company.

Vote counting for shareholders meeting proposals or elections shall be conducted
60



in public at the place of the shareholders meeting. Immediately after vote counting
has been completed, the results of the voting, including the statistical tallies of the
numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site at the meeting, and a record made of
the vote.

The election of Directors at a shareholders meeting shall be held in accordance

with the applicable election and appointment rules adopted by the Company.

Article 12 Meeting minutes and acknowledgments

1.

Matters relating to the resolutions of a shareholders meeting shall be recorded in
the meeting minutes. The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chair of
the meeting and a copy distributed to each shareholder within 20 days after the
conclusion of the meeting. The company may distribute the meeting minutes of
the preceding paragraph by means of a public announcement made through the
MOPS.

The meeting minutes shall accurately record the year, month, day, and place of the
meeting, the chair's full name, the methods by which resolutions were adopted,
and a summary of the deliberations and their results, and shall be retained for the
duration of the existence of the company.

If shareholders do raise any objection, the resolution must specify the voting

method adopted and the number and percentage of rights voted in favor.

Article 13 The Company, beginning from the time it accepts shareholder attendance registrations,

shall make an uninterrupted audio and video recording of the registration procedure,

the proceedings of the shareholders meeting, and the voting and vote counting

procedures. The recorded materials of the preceding paragraph shall be retained for at

least 1 year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the

Company Act, the recording shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation.

Article 14 Public disclosure

l.

On the day of a shareholders' meeting, the Company shall compile in the
prescribed format a statistical statement of the number of shares obtained by
solicitors through solicitation and the number of shares represented by proxies and
shall make an express disclosure of the same at the place of the shareholders
meeting.

If matters put to a resolution at a shareholders' meeting constitute material
information under applicable laws or regulations or under Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation regulations, the Company shall upload the content of such resolution

to the MOPS within the prescribed time period.

Article 15 Maintaining order at the meeting venue

1.

Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders meeting shall wear
61



identification cards or arm bands.

2. The chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at
the meeting place. When proctors or security personnel help maintain order at the
meeting place, they shall wear an identification card or armband bearing the word
"Proctor.".

3. At the place of a shareholders meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak through
any device other than the public address equipment set up by the Company, the
chair may prevent the shareholder from so doing.

4.  When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair's correction,
obstructing the proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the chair may direct

the proctors or security personnel to escort the shareholder from the meeting.

Article 16 Recess and resumption of shareholders meeting

1. When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time
considerations. If a force majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting
temporarily suspended and announce a time when, in view of the circumstances,
the meeting will be resumed.

2. If the meeting venue is no longer available for continued use and not all of the
items (including extraordinary motions) on the meeting agenda have been
addressed, the shareholders meeting may adopt a resolution to resume the meeting
at another venue.

3. A resolution may be adopted at a shareholders meeting to defer or resume the

meeting within 5 days in accordance with Article 182 of the Company Act.

Article 17 These Rules, and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after adoption by

shareholders meetings.

62



Appendix 3 Rules for Election of Directors

Andes Technology Corporation
Rules for Election of Directors
[English translation for reference only]

Article 1

Unless otherwise provided for in the Company Act, Securities and Exchange Act or the Articles of
Incorporation of the Company, the Directors of the Company shall be elected in accordance with the
Rules specified herein.

Article 2

Election of Directors of the Company shall be held at the shareholders’ meeting.

The board of directors shall prepare separate ballots for directors in numbers corresponding to the
directors to be elected. The number of voting rights associated with each ballot shall be specified on
the ballots, which shall then be distributed to the attending shareholders at the shareholders meeting.
Attendance card numbers printed on the ballots may be used instead of recording the names of
voting shareholders.

Article 3

In the election of Directors of the Company, the single recorded cumulative voting system is
implemented. Each share shall have voting rights equivalent to the number of seats to be elected,
and such voting rights can be combined to vote for one person, or be divided to vote for several
persons.

Article 4

The number of directors will be as specified in this Corporation's Articles of Incorporation, with
voting rights separately calculated for independent and non-independent director positions. Those
receiving ballots representing the highest numbers of voting rights will be elected sequentially
according to their respective numbers of votes. When two or more persons receive the same number
of votes, thus exceeding the specified number of positions, they shall draw lots to determine the
winner, with the Chairman drawing lots on behalf of any person not in attendance.

Article 5

At the beginning of the election, the Chairman shall appoint several persons each to check and
record the ballots. The persons to check the ballots have to be appointed from among the
shareholders present

Article 6

The ballot box used for voting shall be prepared by the Company and be checked in public before
voting by the person responsible for checking ballots.

Article 7

63



If the candidate is a shareholder of the Company, voters shall fill in the “candidate” column the
candidate’s name and the candidate’s shareholder’s number. If the candidate is a government 54
agency or a legal entity, the full name of the government agency or the legal entity and the name(s)
of their representative(s) shall be filled in the “candidate” column. If there are multiple

representatives, these representatives’ names shall be filled in separately. If the candidate is not a

shareholder of the Company, voters shall fill in the “candidate” column with the candidate’s name

and the candidate’s ID number.

Article 8

Ballots shall be deemed void in either one of the following conditions:

(1) Ballots not placed in the ballot box.

(2) Ballots not prepared by the Company.

(3) Blank ballots not completed by the voter.

(4) If the candidate is a shareholder of the Company, the name or the shareholder’s number of the
candidate filled in the ballot inconsistent with the shareholder’s register. If the candidate is not a
shareholder of the Company, the name or ID number of the candidate filled in the ballot is
incorrect.

(5) Ballots with other written characters or symbols in addition to candidate’s name, shareholder’s
number (ID number) and the number of votes cast for the candidate.

(6) Illegible writing or being erased or changed.

(7) The name of the candidates filled in the ballots being the same as another candidate’s name and
the respective shareholder’s numbers (ID numbers) not being indicated to distinguish them.

Article 9

The voting rights shall be calculated during the meeting immediately after the vote casting and the

results of the election, and the results of the calculation, including the list of persons elected as

directors and the numbers of votes with which they were elected, shall be announced by the

Chairman at the meeting.

The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed with the signatures

of the monitoring personnel and kept in proper custody for at least one year. If, however, a

shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the ballots shall be retained

until the conclusion of the litigation.

Article 10

The Rules and any revision thereof shall become effective after approval at the shareholder’s

meeting.

64



Appendix 4 Shareholdings of All Directors

Andes Technology Corporation
Shareholdings of All Directors

The Company’s total outstanding shares: 42,650,911

. Total shareholdings of all Directors required by law: 3,600,000

3. As of March 27", 2021, the cut-off date of this Shareholders’ Meeting, the individual Directors
and their aggregate shareholdings are listed below:

N —

Title Name Date Elected Shares %
. MediaTek Capital Corp.
Chairman Representative: Ming-Kai Tsai 2018. 6.21 5,657,324 13.26
. National Development Fund.
Director Representative: Herming Chiuch 2018. 6.21 2,979,237 6.99
Hotran Resource
Director Development Ltd. 2018. 6.21 455,000 1.07
Representative: Chun-Huei Ho

Director Jyh-Ming Lin 2018. 6.21 538,493 1.26
Director Hong-Men Su 2020.6.18 328,781 0.77
Director Andrew Chang 2020.6.18 0 0
Independent Chien-Kuo Yang 2018. 6.21 0 0

Director
Independent Tien-Fu Chen 2019.10. 2 0 0

Director
Holding of all Directors 9,958,835 23.35

65




